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Attorneys for Plaintiffs

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON

ANDRE OPSAL, LIz FLUGEL, DEBBIE KOEPPR, KIMBERLY
JOHNSON DARREL MOLLENHOUR, JOANNE RICE, STEPHEN
SERGI, JAMES SZPEK, MAXINE DUNKELMAN and RATRICIA
WOODWARD

Plaintiffs,
V.

WASHINGTON FEDERATION OFSTATE EMPLOYEES
AMERICAN FEDERATION OFSTATE, COUNTY AND
MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEESINTERNATIONAL, AFL-CIO, an
unincorporated associatiogBTEVE MCLAIN, Director, .
Washington State Labor Relations Officesf& WEEKS, Civil
Director, Washlnquton State Department of Labor and No.

Industries; D\E STEWART, Assistant Director for Office of

Human Resources, Washington State Department afrLapPLAINTIFF
and Industries; 88IN ARNOLD-WILLIAMS , Secretary, OPSAL, et al.’s
Washington State Department of Social and Health CLASS
Services; BTTY RAMAGE, Director of Human Resources, | ACTION
Washington State Department of Social and Health COMPLAINT
Services; Iz Luck, Director, Washington State Department

of Licensing; AAN HAIGHT, Assistant Director for
Administrative Services, Washington State Departroén
Licensing; MARY C. SELECKY, Secretary, Washington State
Department of Health,AlICE ADAIR, Assistant Secretary,
Washington State Department of Health

Defendants,

MICHAEL J.MURPHY, Treasurer, State of Washington
Rule 19(a) Defendant
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COMPLAINT

1. Plaintiffs Andre Opsal, Liz Flugel, Debbie Koeppmberly Johnson,
Darrel Mollenhour, Joanne Rice, Stephen Sergi, 3éapek, Maxine Dunkelman
and Pat Woodward (hereinafter referred to as “Bftsi), complain of the acts
and omissions done by the Washington Federati@taié Employees, American
Federation of State, County and Municipal Employ@é¢d -CIO (hereinafter
referred to as “WFSE”), as well as the acts don8&teye McLain, Director,
Washington State Labor Relations Office; Gary Weékeector, Washington
State Department of Labor and Industries; Dave &tgwssistant Director for the
Office of Human Resources of the Washington Staeddtment of Labor and
Industries; Robin Arnold-Williams, Secretary, Wasgldton Department of Social
and Health Services; Betty Ramage, Director of HuiRasources, Washington
Department of Social and Health Services; Liz Liuiegctor, Washington State
Department of Licensing; Alan Haight, Assistantdatior for Administrative
Services, Washington State Department of Licensing;Janice Adair, Assistant
Secretary, Washington State Department of Heaéthe{hafter referred to as
“Employer Defendants”) (Washington State Treasiehael J. Murphy is named

as a Rule 19(a) Defendant in order for completefred be accorded), and allege:

NATURE OF THE CASE
2. This is a civil rights class action pursuant 20U41S.C. 81983, seeking
equitable relief, including reinstatement with baeky and full benefits,
declaratory relief, nominal and compensatory dammagpel/or restitution and other
relief to prevent and/or redress the deprivatiogenrtolor of Washington law of
Plaintiffs’ rights, privileges and immunities undbe United States Constitution.
3. Upon instructions from Defendant WFSE and, oonmiation and belief,

Steve McLain, Director of the Washington State LrdRelations Office, Alan
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Haight, the Assistant Director of Administrativer@ees of the Washington State
Department of Licensing, notified Plaintiff Woodwlavia letter dated December 9,
2005, of her termination from employment with thegartment of Licensing
effective December 9, 2005, for failure to compighwhe compulsory unionism
clause in the collective bargaining agreement betvi&FSE and the State of
Washington (“CBA”). This termination was effectadtin a manner that violated
Plaintiff Woodward’s First and Fourteenth Amendmeghts as set forth by the
United States Supreme Court@hicago Teachers Union v. Hudson, 475 U.S. 292
(1986). It is therefore necessary for this Cooirbiider her immediate
reinstatement with full back pay and benefits, all as immediate injunctive
relief, along with nominal and compensatory damagesder to address the
violations of Plaintiff Woodward’s constitutionaghts.

4, Upon instructions from Defendant WFSE and, oonmiation and belief,
Steve McLain, Director of the Washington State LraRelations Office, Janice
Adair, the Assistant Secretary of the Washingt@teSDepartment of Health,
notified Plaintiff Dunkelman via letter dated Dedssn 19, 2005, of her
termination from employment with the DepartmentHeflth effective January 3,
2006, for failure to comply with the compulsory anism clause in the CBA. This
termination was effectuated in a manner that veald®laintiff Dunkelman’s First
and Fourteenth Amendment rights as set forth byineed States Supreme Court
in Hudson. It is therefore necessary for this Court to ottty immediate
reinstatement with full back pay and benefits, all as immediate injunctive
relief, along with nominal and compensatory damagesder to address the
violations of Plaintiff Dunkelman’s constitutionaghts.

5. Furthermore, Defendant WFSE and Rule 19(a) Defendlurphy have
demanded and/or remitted and accepted compulsesyffem the wages of
Plaintiff Opsal on or around July 15, 2005, fromiRtiff Flugel on or around
August 25, 2005, and from Plaintiff Szpek on orus@ February 10, 2006, as well
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as from the wages of members of the class Plargdtk to represent, in a manner
that violates Plaintiffs’ and class members’ Fastl Fourteenth Amendment rights
as set forth by the United States Supreme Coutuason. It is therefore
necessary for this Court to order immediate injiwectelief, along with nominal
and compensatory damages, in order to address VBESEtinuing violations of
Plaintiffs’ and class members’ constitutional rgbly deducting compulsory fees
in the absence of fulludson compliance, and include Rule 19(a) Defendant
Murphy for full injunctive relief.

6. Plaintiff Rice has filed a timely request for fmassociation” based on bona
fide religious tenets after receiving notice oktbption from WFSE, despite the
fact that WFSE has never provided Plaintiffs osslmnembers with the procedural
safeguards that are constitutionally required uktiglson. Because the WFSE
has not granted this request for “non-associdtlaintiff Rice and other class
members who filed similar requests are in immirdartger of having their
employment terminated. It is therefore necessaryhis Court to order immediate
injunctive relief in order to prevent Defendant WBE-Bom seeking the termination
of said Plaintiff and other members of the class.

7. Since on or about November 2005, Defendant WHsEle Employer
Defendants have threatened to terminate Plairdibkspp, Johnson, Mollenhour,
Sergi and Szpek, and other class members thastekyto represent, for failure to
pay fees to the WFSE, despite the fact that WFSEnhkaer provided Plaintiffs or
class members with the procedural safeguards teatamstitutionally required
underHudson. Although WFSE has since rescinded these requestspt in
regards to Plaintiff Johnson, termination threg@ist Plaintiffs Johnson,
Mollenhour, Sergi and Szpek have not been rescibgig¢teir employer, the
Washington State Department of Labor and Industriess therefore necessary for
this Court to order immediate injunctive reliefarder to prevent the terminations

of Plaintiffs Johnson, Mollenhour, Sergi and othambers of the class.
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Additionally, along with all Plaintiffs and classembers, Plaintiff Koepp seeks

nominal damages for the violation of her constandél rights.

JURISDICTION
8. Plaintiffs’ claims arise under the First and Reanth Amendments to the
United States Constitution. Therefore, this Ctwaig jurisdiction pursuant to 28
U.S.C. 1331.
9. This claim also arises under the Federal Ciwjh&s Act of 1871, 42 U.S.C.
§ 1983, to redress the deprivation, under col®tate law, of rights, privileges
and immunities secured to Plaintiffs by the Unitdtes Constitution.
Accordingly, this Court has jurisdiction over tldspute pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
81343, pursuant to which the Court may grant: egstatement with full back pay
and benefits; b) damages or restitution for feezedan violation of Plaintiffs’
First and Fourteenth Amendment rights; c) injuretiglief against the future
unlawful enforcement of the compulsory unionisnuskof the collective
bargaining agreement by any means including, bulimded to, the collection of
said fees, the threats to terminate or actual teatiwn of the nonmembers’
employment for failure to pay fees; d) nominal dge®afor the violation of
Plaintiffs’ First and Fourteenth Amendment rigldag e) reasonable attorneys’
fees, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988.
10. Thisis also a case of actual controversy wRémtiffs are seeking a
declaration of their rights under the Constitutadrihe United States. Under 28
U.S.C. 882201 and 2202, this Court may declareigfits of Plaintiffs and the
requested class and grant further necessary apéemrelief based thereon,
including preliminary and injunctive relief, pursudo Federal Rule of Civil

Procedure 65.

VENUE
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11. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28.0.3391(b) and (c) because
Defendants either reside and/or have offices andwct their business in this
judicial district, and because a substantial patth® events or omissions giving

rise to Plaintiffs’ claims occurred in this juditdistrict.

PARTIES
12. The Plaintiffs are Washington State employeeisaaia all employed —
except for Plaintiffs Woodward and Dunkelman, wheravterminated for failing
to comply with the compulsory unionism clause, ewetne absence of full
Hudson compliance - in bargaining units which are repnése for the purposes of
collective bargaining, by WFSE. Plaintiffs Johnsbtollenhour, Sergi and Szpek
are employed by the Washington State Departmelalodr and Industries.
Plaintiffs Opsal, Flugel and Koepp are employedh®/Washington State
Department of Social and Health Services. PldiRite is employed by the
Washington State Employment Security Departmetdin®#f Woodward was
employed by the Washington State Department ofriscey. Plaintiff Dunkelman
was employed by the Washington State DepartmeHeafth. As such, Plaintiffs
are “employees” within the meaning of RCW § 41.88.0 Plaintiffs are not
members of WFSE.
13. Defendant WFSE is an “employee organizatiordefshed by RCW §
41.80.005, and has been recognized as the monbpaigining representative for
Washington State employees in at least 33 diffdsangaining units throughout
the State. The WFSE conducts its business anéiiges throughout the State of
Washington, and is affiliated with various locdisaughout the State, as well as
the American Federation of State, County and MpaicEmployees (AFSCME).
Defendant WFSE is headquartered in Olympia, Wasbmg
14. As the Governor’s designee under RCW § 41.80 Bfrployer Defendant

Steve McLain, Director of the Washington State LrdRelations Office, managed
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the collective bargaining process that resultethénadoption of the collective
bargaining agreement (“CBA”) between the State asWWngton and the WFSE.
On information and belief, as Director of the LaBRw®lations Office, Mr. McLain
has the power to enforce, and has enforced, the, @8Aiding the compulsory
unionism clause in the agreement. Also, in hisacdyp as director of the Labor
Relations Office, Mr. McLain has the power to resjue termination of State
employees for noncompliance with the terms of tBACas well as the power to
rescind these requests. He is sued in his offoaiphcity.

15. Employer Defendants Gary Weeks, Robin Arnoldherits, Liz Luce and
Mary Selecky are “Managers,” as defined in RCW $8122, of the Washington
State Department of Labor and Industries, the Wagbn State Department of
Social and Health Services, the Washington Stapafent of Licensing, and
the Washington State Department of Health, respagti As such, they have
substantial authority that is not merely routinelerical in nature with regard to
personnel administration and have the power todnceterminate employees, as
well as the power to rescind such orders. Theywaeel in their official capacities.
16. Employer Defendants Dave Stewart and Betty Raraag)in charge of the
Human Resources divisions at the Washington Stepafment of Labor and
Industries and the Washington State Departmenboiaband Health Services,
respectively. Employer Defendant Alan Haight i€lvarge of the Administrative
Services Division at the Washington State Departraghicensing. Employer
Defendant Janice Adair is the Assistant SecretatlyeaWashington State
Department of Health. As such, Stewart, Ramag&ghiand Adair have
substantial authority and power to hire and tertaei@amnployees, as well as the
power to rescind such orders. They are sued inaffecial capacities.

17. Defendant Michael J. Murphy (hereinafter “Murphyamed herein as a
Rule 19(a) defendant, is the Treasurer of the Sfaféashington. As such, he is

charged with the responsibility of issuing wagesnployees of the State and/or
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its Departments, including Plaintiffs and other nbens of the requested class, and
processing all deductions therefore, includingsioicalled “representation fees”
pursuant to compulsory unionism agreements, a®anéd byRCW § 41.80.100.
He is sued in his official capacity. Defendant Bhy is named as a party pursuant
to Rule 19(a), FED.R.CIV.P., because, in his absecmmplete injunctive relief
concerning the deduction of the compulsory feesicahe accorded among those

already named as defendants.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
18. Thisis a class action brought by Plaintiffstlgir own behalf and on behalf
of all other similarly situated employees, pursuarfEederal Rule of Civil
Procedure 23(b)(1)(A) and (b)(2), and, alternayiy8B(b)(3). The class that
Plaintiffs seek to represent consists of all Séatployees, who at the time since
July 1, 2005, work in bargaining units which weaeg, have been, or will be
represented exclusively for purposes of collediaegaining by WFSE, and were,
are, and/or will nevertheless be required to paynmember “agency shop” fees to
WFSE as a mandatory condition of employment.
19. The number of persons in this class is beliggatumber in the thousands.
Since these persons are so numerous, joinder chah members is therefore
impractical.
20. There are questions of law and fact commonl tmambers of the class, to
wit, whether Defendants have remitted and seizes fimm nonmembers, and/or
threatened to terminate or actually have terminat@uinembers, or otherwise
taken “adverse action” against nonmembers, prigréeiding them with all of the
notice and procedural safeguards required by trs¢ &nd Fourteenth Amendments
of the United States Constitution as prerequisagble seizure of compulsory
agency fees from the wages of nonmember State gegs0

21. Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of other membefghe class who are subject
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to the same deprivations of their rights by Defernislaenforcement of the
compulsory unionism clause of the collective bargey agreement including, but
not limited to, “adverse action” taken against nenmbers, which includes threats
to terminate or actual termination of their empl@y as well as the seizure of
compulsory fees in the absence of the constitulipnaquired notice and
procedural safeguards, as hereinafter alleged.

22. The named Plaintiffs can adequately represenintierests of the class.
Plaintiffs have no interests antagonistic to theeotmnembers of the class related to
the subject matter of this lawsuit. Plaintiffs astber members of the class are
entitled to notice and the procedures and safeguaqlired by the Constitution as
interpreted by the Supreme CourHodson, 475 U.S. at 306.

23. Plaintiffs’ attorneys are provided by a natioclaritable legal aid
organization and are experienced in representimgamees in litigation, including
class actions, involving issues identical or simitathose raised in this action.
Plaintiffs’ attorneys are well-qualified to be apmed class counsel by the Court.
24. Because the Defendants’ duty unidedson to provide notice and
procedural protections adequate to protect the &nrd Fourteenth Amendment
rights of nonunion employees applies equally telaés members, the prosecution
of separate actions by individual class memberddvoneate a risk of inconsistent
or varying adjudications which would establish imgatible standards of conduct
for Defendants.

25. Defendants have acted and threaten to continaetton grounds generally
applicable to all, thereby making appropriate dettay, injunctive and other
equitable relief with regard to the class as a @hol

26. The questions of law or fact common to the mambéthe class
predominate over questions affecting only individnembers, and a class action
IS superior to other available methods for the daid efficient adjudication of the

controversy, because the individual class memberdeprived of the same rights
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by Defendants’ actions and threatened actionsddfet only in non-material

aspects of their factual situation.

FACTS
27. Acting in concert under color of State law -wiib- Revised Code of
Washington 88 41.80.010 and 41.80.100 — the StaMashington and its
numerous departments have recognized the WFSEe &thusive bargaining
representative for Plaintiffs and other memberthefclass. Pursuant to RC8V
41.80.100, the State of Washington and the WFSE batered into a collective
bargaining agreement which contains a forced usrorglause, Article 40.3.
Pursuant to this clause, Plaintiffs and other masbegthe class are required as a
condition of employment to either become membets®union and pay
membership dues, or remain nonmembers and paygam¢g shop” fee equal to
the amount required to be a member in good starafitige union. According to
the contract, if an employee does not comply withforced unionism clause, “the
Union will notify the Employer and inform the empgke that his or her
employment may be terminated.”
28. Pursuant to Article 40.1 “Union Dues,” of the £Bhe employer is
required, upon written authorization of the empky® remit the compulsory fees
to the WFSE.
29. On or about May 10, 2005, the WFSE mailed acedb all employees in
the represented bargaining units which describegtbcess by which it intended
to collect this fee from Plaintiffs and all othesmmembers.
30. Included in this notice was (1) a one page duobory section; (2) a one
page instruction form which described four diffdresays in which the recipient
could satisfy the forced unionism obligations; #3)ne page bulleted outline of the
four different types of fees that an employee cqayg under the forced unionism

clause; (4) a one page form entitled “Representdtee Request”; (5) a payroll
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deduction authorization; and (6) a document eutjtlslotice to All Employees in
Bargaining Units Covered by a Contract BetweerWieSE, Council 28 as
Certified Bargaining Representative and Their Erp@idNVhich Contains Union
Security.”

31. This notice, particularly the document mentioimefl 30(6) above, failed to
provide constitutionally-adequate safeguards ohEfés’ and class members’
rights which are required by the Supreme Courtgsien inHudson, including,
but not limited to, the following:

a. WFSE has not provided Plaintiffs and class nemiwith an
independently verified audit of its financial redemor audited
financial disclosure of its affiliates that recem@ortion of Plaintiffs’
agency fee;

b. WFSE has not provided Plaintiffs and class nmaslwvith an
adequate explanation for the basis of the portodridaintiffs’ fees
which go to WFSE affiliated locals;

C. WFSE unlawfully required that nonmember empésyeho wished to
object to funding ideological and other non-bargajractivities sign
an automatic payroll deduction form;

d. WSFE unlawfully required nonmember fee payens wished to
challenge the union’s calculation of the fee tdestheir “reason for
the challenge,” and also required challengers tbgpaate in the
hearing before an arbitrator.

32. According to Article 49 of the CBA, the agreemigself went into effect on
July 1, 2005. The agreement covers the employeasl@ast 33 different
bargaining units throughout the State until June2BQ7. On or about July 15,
2005, and continuing thereafter, Defendant Murpbégdn processing
representation fee deductions from Plaintiffs OpShkigel (deductions began on or
about August 25, 2005), Szpek (deductions begasr about February 10, 2006),

Class Action Complaint - Opsal, et al. v. WFSE, «dl. 11




© o0 N oo o B~ wWw N P

N RN N RN N N N NN R P R R R R R R R
0w ~N o g A~ W N B O © 0 N O 0o~ W N B O

and other class members who were required as aticondf employment to
authorize such deductions, and remitting said fe¢se WFSE, even though
proper notice regarding the collection of these fegs not been provided.
(Plaintiffs Koepp, Johnson, Mollenhour, Rice, Se@unkelman, Woodward, and
other class members have not authorized such deds@nd therefore have not
paid any fees at this time.) At the time the déidns started, the WFSE had not,
and still has not, provided Plaintiffs and classmhers with the procedural
safeguards described in 1 31 above.

33. Even though WFSE failed to provide nonmembetk sufficient
information to enable them to determine intelliggmthether or not to object to
and/or challenge the calculation of the amounhefdgency fee, Plaintiffs Opsal
and Flugel and other class members filled out gpeapriate WFSE forms in the
Summer of 2005 in response to WFSE’s May noticeclvhaffirmed their desires
to object - as is their right under the Constitmtas interpreted by the United
States Supreme CourtAiood v. Detroit Board of Education, 431 U.S. 209
(1977), andHudson, 475 U.S. 292 - to the WFSE'’s use of their feefs ol
ideological and other non-bargaining activities.

34. Plaintiff Szpek and, on information and belaher class members,
“agreed” to pay to WFSE an “agency fee”, which udgsno reduction for the
amount that WFSE spends on ideological and othettaogaining activities,
under threat of termination of his position at Bepartment of Labor and
Industries. Though Plaintiff Spzek, requestedayp fhe “representation fee”
amount, which excludes costs that are not relatestective bargaining, he was
informed by WFSE officials that it was too late fom to make this request, and
that he would either have to become a union memésrain a nonmember and
pay the full amount, or be terminated.

35. Because the notices provided by WFSE did ndadecthe information

specified in § 31, nonmembers were not able tarchete intelligently whether or
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not to challenge WFSE's calculation of the amourthe representation fee.

36. On information and belief, Defendant Murphy hamitted, and continues to
remit, to WFSE the fees deducted from the wagédahtiffs Opsal, Flugel,

Szpek and other class members.

37. On information and belief, sometime in Novem2&05, the WFSE sent the
names of State employees who were not in compliasiitethe collective
bargaining agreement to the Labor Relations Offitlke Labor Relations Office
then notified the individual employing agenciesritiate termination proceedings
against these employees.

38. On information and belief, WFSE also notified #mployer of Plaintiff
Woodward - the Washington State Department of Lsgen- that Plaintiff
Woodward was not in compliance with the CBA, anguessted the employer to
begin termination proceedings against said Plaintihe WFSE made these
requests notwithstanding the fact that it has newerplied with the procedural
requirements oHudson, 475 U.S. 292.

39. As aresult, the Washington State Departmehtoginsing sent a letter dated
November 17, 2005, signed by Employer Defendanh Alaight, to Plaintiff
Woodward, which threatened her with terminatioshé did not comply with the
compulsory unionism clause. The Washington Staealtment of Licensing
made this threat notwithstanding the fact thatpifeeedural requirements of
Hudson were not met.

40. Plaintiff Woodward responded to the November2DD5 letter in a letter
dated November 25, 2005. In the letter, PlaiMiffodward expressed her
frustration with the procedures WFSE had takerrdeoto collect compulsory
fees from her and other nonmembers. She asketuthat any correspondence be
made in writing.

41. By letter dated December 9, 2005, Employer DadahAlan Haight

informed Plaintiff Woodward that she was termindi@an her position with the
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Department of Licensing effective immediately. §tadverse action” which
resulted in the termination of Plaintiff Woodwaveas carried out notwithstanding
the fact that the procedural requirementsiofison were not met.

42. On information and belief, WFSE also notified #mployer of Plaintiff
Dunkelman - the Washington State Department oftHeahat Plaintiff
Dunkelman was not in compliance with the CBA, aeguested the employer to
begin termination proceedings against said Plaintihe WFSE made these
requests notwithstanding the fact that it has newerplied with the procedural
requirements oHudson, 475 U.S. 292.

43. As aresult, the Washington State Departmehieaiith sent a letter dated
December 6, 2005, signed by Employer Defendantdahdair, to Plaintiff
Dunkelman, which threatened her with terminatioshié did not comply with the
compulsory unionism clause. This “adverse actr@sulted in a subsequent “pre-
disciplinary” hearing in which this threat was neyghasized. The Washington
State Department of Health made this threat nostatiding the fact that the
procedural requirements bludson were not met.

44. By letter dated December 19, 2005, Employer badat Janice Adair
informed Plaintiff Dunkelman that she was termidatective January 3, 2006.
This “adverse action” which resulted in the terniima of Plaintiff Dunkelman,
was carried out notwithstanding the fact that trecedural requirements of
Hudson were not met.

45. On information and belief, WFSE also notified #mployer of Plaintiffs
Johnson, Mollenhour, Sergi, Spzek and other classlmers - the Washington
State Department of Labor and Industries - that Béaintiffs and other class
members were not in compliance with the CBA, anpliested the employer to
begin termination proceedings against said Pléndind other class members. The
WFSE made these requests notwithstanding theHatttthas never complied with

the procedural requirementstdéidson, 475 U.S. 292.
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46. As aresult, the Washington State Departmehab6r and Industries sent
letters sometime in November 2005, signed by Engrl®efendant Dave Stewart,
with courtesy copies sent to Employer Defendany®éeeks, to Plaintiffs
Johnson, Mollenhour, Sergi and Spzek, and othesceteembers, which threatened
them with termination if they did not comply withet compulsory unionism
clause. This “adverse action” resulted in subsefjtpre-disciplinary” hearings in
which this threat was re-emphasized. The Washm§tate Department of Labor
and Industries made these threats notwithstantiedgict that the procedural
requirements oHudson were not met.

47. In late 2005 and early 2006, Plaintiffs Sergl 8vollenhour filed requests
for “non-association” and in January, 2006, PI#ir8zpek signed a payroll
deduction form. As a result, WFSE has since squiests to the Washington State
Department of Labor and Industries rescinding @sdnd to initiate termination
proceedings against these three Plaintiffs. Oormétion and belief, the
Department has not formally rescinded its thre&tsrmnination of Plaintiffs
Mollenhour, Sergi, and Szpek, and there has beeuarantee of protection
against any future adverse employment action baiken.

48. Plaintiff Johnson has not been able to coma agaeement with Defendant
WFSE, and is consequently still in imminent dangfdnaving her employment
terminated.

49. On information and belief, WFSE notified the déoypr of Plaintiff Koepp
and other class members - the Washington Staterdegrat of Social and Health
Services - that she and other class members were compliance with the
collective bargaining agreement, and requestedni@oyer to begin termination
proceedings against said Plaintiff and class mesab&he WFSE made this
request notwithstanding the fact that it has newenplied with the procedural
requirements ofudson.

50. As aresult, in the beginning of December, 2000& \Washington State
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Department of Social and Health Services sentriettePlaintiff Koepp and other
class members which threatened them with terminatithey did not comply with
the compulsory unionism clause. This “adversepattiesulted in a subsequent
“pre-disciplinary” hearing in which this threat weessemphasized. The
Washington State Department of Social and Healthi&ss made these threats
notwithstanding the fact that the procedural rezugnts oHudson were not met.
51. Plaintiff Koepp filed a request for “non-assaicn” with WFSE, which has
since sent a request to the Washington State Deeattof Social and Health
Services rescinding its demand to initiate termamaproceedings against said
Plaintiffs. The Department has now rescindedhitedt of termination.

52. Plaintiff Rice and other class members havd filmely requests for “non-
association” based on bona fide religious tend&s agceiving notice of this option
from WFSE, despite the fact that WFSE has neveriged Plaintiffs or class
members with the procedural safeguards that argtitamonally required under
Hudson. Because the WFSE has not granted this reque$tda-association,”
Plaintiff Rice and other class members who filediksir requests, are in imminent
danger of having their employment terminated.

53. On information and belief, the WFSE has alsdfiedt and will continue to
notify, the State employers of other class membegtiseir noncompliance with the
CBA, and other Washington State employees have teegrinated, or threatened
with termination, or will be threatened or actuakyminated, for failure to comply
with the forced unionism clause in the collectiaedaining agreement. These
adverse employment actions have all occurred de#ptfact that the WFSE has
never complied with the procedural requirementsladson.

54. On information and belief, the Washington Statbor Relations Office will
continue to direct other Washington State departsienthreaten or actually
terminate other State employees who have not cemhplith the compulsory

unionism clause.
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55. On information and belief, WFSE has not attehpbecorrect the
deficiencies of the May notice, and unless enjoiogthis Court, Defendant
Murphy will continue deducting representation f&esn the wages of the
Plaintiffs and class members — except those Plsnho have not authorized
such deductions as described in § 32 - and willtrdrase deductions to WFSE
without correcting the deficiencies in the May weti Furthermore, unless
enjoined by this Court, the WFSE and the EmployeieRdants will continue to

threaten, or actually terminate, nonmembers whe Ima¢ complied with the CBA.

CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1983 and
the Constitution of the United States)

56. Plaintiff and class members reassert the fonggand further allege:

57. These acts and omissions, on the part of DefeI&SE and the Employer
Defendants, have resulted in the unlawful thre&tsronination, actual
terminations, and/or seizure of fees which viotaeFirst and Fourteenth
Amendments to the United States Constitution aspnéted by the United States
Supreme Court iudson, 475 U.S. 292, and its progeny. This seizure bega
or about July 15, 2005 and subsequent seizuresduavered and will continue to
occur in the future. The more specific threatteaiination began around
November, 2005, and the actual terminations beg@acdur around December,
2005, and will continue to occur in the future.

58. Plaintiffs’ and class members’ decisions ngbto and pay dues to WFSE
and its affiliates are exercises of their rightére@dom of speech, association,
petition, belief, and thought guaranteed agairagesiction by the First and
Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Cotistitu The actions of WFSE

and Murphy acting in concert to remit and accepinfiPlaintiffs and class
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members agency fees to WFSE and its affiliates; émetheir costs of exclusive
representation on behalf of Plaintiffs’ and classmbers’ bargaining units,
infringe upon those fundamental rights. Similathg actions of WFSE, Employer
Defendants, and other State departments, actiognoert to threaten Plaintiffs
and other class members with termination or agtuatiminating them for failure
to comply with the compulsory unionism clause vielthose fundamental rights.
59. The First and Fourteenth Amendments to the digtates Constitution
require that the procedures for the collectionarhpelled agency fees be carefully
tailored to limit the infringement on the fundamamnights of nonunion employees
to serve the compelling state interest that jleiBuch fees in the manner least
restrictive of the nonunion employees’ freedomspdech, association, petition,
belief, thought, and due process, and to facilifa¢enonunion employees’ ability
to protect those rights.

60. These procedural safeguards include:

a. notice to nonmembers, before agency fees arectedl, that
adequately explains the basis for the amount ofeegincluding an
allocation of major categories of expenses betviaefully
chargeable and nonchargeable activities, verifiedrbindependent
auditor;

b. a reduction in the amount of the agency fee lipeaiors based on the
audited financial disclosure, instead of a rebare,

C. a reasonably prompt opportunity to challengeatineunt of the fee
before an impartial decisionmaker without burdensatmallenge
requirements.

61. Plaintiffs claim their constitutional rights, asunciated by the Supreme
Court inHudson, on behalf of themselves and the class that teely o represent,
to be provided witlall of the precollection safeguards and procedurdsaitia

facilitate their ability to protect these constituial rights and ensure that none of
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their wages are either collected or spent for imppprgurposes.

62. The Defendants’ requests for termination, tisreatermination, actual
terminations, and the seizure of representatios fieen the wages of Plaintiff and
class members violate the First and Fourteenth Amemts to the United States
Constitution and 42 U.S.C. 8§ 1983, because the hiige provided by WFSE:

a. did not provide an independently verified audit®financial records
nor audited financial disclosure of its affiliatiast receive a portion
of Plaintiffs’ agency fee;

b. did not provide an adequate explanation for #easoof the portions
of Plaintiffs’ fees which go to WFSE affiliated lals; and

C. unlawfully required that nonmember employees wished to object
to funding ideological activity sign an automateypoll deduction
form;

d. unlawfully required nonmember fee payers who aasto challenge
the union’s calculation of the fee to state thegason for the
challenge,” and also required challengers to gpete in the hearing
before an arbitrator.

63. Defendant WFSE and the other employer Defendevs deprived, and
threaten to continue to deprive, Plaintiffs angslmembers of their First and
Fourteenth Amendment rights, as enunciated andfsgekim Hudson, 475 U.S.

292, to be provided the appropriate safeguardgpemckedural protections prior to,
and during, enforcement of the compulsory unionitamise, including requests of
termination, threats of termination and actual teations, as well as the collection

of any representation fees by the Rule 19(a) Defenhiurphy.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
64. Unless immediately restrained by this Court, \WBE3nd Rule 19(a)
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Defendant Murphy’s acceptance and remittance & fieen the named Plaintiffs’
and class members’ wages has directly caused, éintbntinue to cause,
Plaintiffs and the class members they represesifter the irreparable injury that
Is inherent in the violation of First Amendmentlrig and for which there is no
adequate remedy at law and has deprived and witlrage to deprive them of
portions of their wages without due process of law.

65. Unless immediately restrained by this Court, \HRB8d Employer
Defendants may continue to request, threaten andlfcterminate Plaintiffs
Rice, Johnson, Mollenhour, Sergi and other membktise class, despite the fact
that WFSE has not complied with the proceduralgadeds set forth ikudson.
Similarly, other Employer Defendants and othere&tipartments may threaten or
actually terminate other nonmember employees wke hat paid fees under the
compulsory unionism clause.

66. Wherefore, the Plaintiffs pray that the Coundvpde relief in the following
manner:

a. Enter an order, as soon as practical, certifihigycase as a class
action consisting of the class of all former, catrend future State of
Washington employees who are, have been, or wilkpeesented
exclusively for purposes of collective bargainingWFSE, but who
are not, or will not be members of WFSE, and ware, and/or will
nevertheless be required to pay nonmember “agdmagy’ $ees to
WFSE as a mandatory condition of employment.

b. Issue a temporary, preliminary, and permanergrogdjoining the
WFSE and Rule 19(a) Defendant Murphy, and theinegand
employees, from collecting agency fees from thenkfés and other
nonmembers unless and until WFSE amends its colfeqirocedures
so that they are constitutionally adequate utletson.

C. Issue a temporary, preliminary, and permanergrogdjoining the
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WFSE and the Employer Defendants, including thgands and
employees, from requesting or threatening enforogi or actually
enforcing, the termination provision of the foragdonism clause in
the collective bargaining agreement against Pfésrand class
members who have not authorized the deductionesf fimm their
pay unless and until WFSE amends its collectiorguiares so that
they are constitutionally adequate unbieidson.

Order that Employer Defendants McLain, Luce, Hgi&elecky and

Adair reinstate Plaintiffs Woodward and Dunkelmatrttteir previous

positions with their respective former Washingtdat& employers,

along with back pay, full benefits, and any atteridlamages which
directly resulted from the violations of their caihgional rights.

Order that Employer Defendant McLain, in his rageDirector of the

Washington State Labor Relations Office - as welEanployer

Defendants Weeks, Arnold-Williams, Luce and Seleckyder the

reinstatement of other unlawfully terminated classmbers to their

previous positions with their former Washingtont&tamployers,
along with back pay, full benefits, and any atteridlamages which
directly resulted from the violations of their caihgional rights.

Issue a declaratory judgment that:

I Employer Defendants McLain, Luce, Haight, Seleakyl
Adair have taken “adverse action” against Plaistifoodward,
Dunkelman and other nonmembers by terminating ttoem
failure to comply with the collective bargainingragment
despite the fact that said Plaintiffs were not jated with their
procedural rights as required blypdson, and as such, have
violated 81983 as well as the constitutional rigsft®laintiffs

and other nonmembers.
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Vi.

Defendant WFSE has violated 81983 and the Rftshand
other nonmembers’ constitutional rights as integuidy
Hudson and its progeny, by enforcing the compulsory ursomi
provision, and because fees were unlawfully seméubut
providing to Plaintiffs and other nonmembers (iy an
independently audited financial disclosure, andafi adequate
explanation for the basis of the portions of Piffsitand other
nonmembers’ fees which go to WFSE affiliated locals
Employer Defendants have taken “adverse actigeinst
Plaintiffs Koepp, Johnson, Mollenhour, Sergi, Szpak other
class members, by threatening them with termingborailure
to comply with the collective bargaining agreemaespite the
fact that said Plaintiffs and other nonmembers werte
provided with their procedural rights as requirgd-udson,
and as such, have violated 81983 as well as th&tiaaional
rights of Plaintiffs and other nonmembers.

Defendant WFSE has violated 81983 and the Rinand
other nonmembers’ constitutional rights by requrihat
nonmember employees who wished to object to funding
ideological and other non-bargaining activitiesnsamn
automatic payroll deduction form.

Defendant WFSE has violated 81983 and the Pifsrand
other nonmembers’ constitutional rights by requjrihat
nonmember employees who wished to challenge thanimi
calculation of the compulsory fee to state thesason for the
challenge,” and by requiring challengers to pgoate in the
hearing before an arbitrator.

The United States Constitution prohibits the VEERShd the
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Employer Defendants from enforcing the forced urson
clause by collecting fees from Plaintiffs and othenmembers,
requesting or threatening employees with termima@mnd
actually terminating employees, without establightime proper
procedural safeguards set fortitHodson and its progeny.

g. Issue an order requiring Defendant WFSE to pawinal damages for
each Constitutional violation which occurred byleaeizure of fees,
each request for termination and each threat ofitetion, where the
procedural safeguards establishetiudson were not followed;

h. Award reasonable attorney’s fees pursuant to. &QJ §1988; and

I Order any further legal or equitable relief as @ourt deems just and

proper.

Dated this 18 Day of March, 2006.

Respectfully submitted,

Stephen Matthews

WA State Bar Number:

Attorney for the Plaintiffs

Phlllatl)jall_ul_rg, Ledlin, Matthews & Sheldon,
900 Paulsen Center

W. 421 Riverside

Spokane, Washington 99201

P: (509) 838-605

F: (509) 625-1909

sm@spokelaw.com

James Plunkett

IL State Bar Number 6283764
Attorney for the Plaintiffs

c/o National Right to Work Legal
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